

## PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

#### **Table of Contents**

PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNOR'S WEC IMPLEMENTATION GUIDE	Э
WORK ETHIC CERTIFICATION PROGRAM HISTORY	6
TIMELINE OF ACTIVITIES	7
GOVERNOR'S WEC OVERVIEW	8
GOVERNOR'S WEC APPLICATION PROCESS	9
OVERVIEW OF GCCS CORPORATION'S PRIDE PROGRAM	10
GCCS PRIDE RUBRIC OVERVIEW	11
2015-2016 GCCS PRIDE RUBRIC	12
COLLEGE AND CAREER READINESS ADVISORY COUNCIL	13
SAMPLE COLLEGE AND CAREER READINESS ADVISORY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN	15
SAMPLE GCCS ADVISORY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA	17
BUSINESS PARTNERSHIPS	18
SAMPLE BUSINESS PARTNERSHIP LETTER	20
BUSINESS PARTNERS – INCENTIVES	21
PARENT/GUARDIAN LETTER	22
SAMPLE PARENT INFORMATION LETTER	23
STUDENT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM/CHECK SHEET	24
SAMPLE STUDENT PARTICIPATION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM	25
SAMPLE WORK ETHIC TEACHER/ADULT VERIFICATION FORM	26
COMMUNITY SERVICE DOCUMENTATION	27
SAMPLE COMMUNITY SERVICE DOCUMENTATION FORMS	28
Community Service Documentation	28
Community Service Documentation	28
CRITERIA MONITORING SPREADSHEET	29
SAMPLE CRITERIA MONITORING SPREADSHEET	30
DATA COLLECTION AND ANALYSIS	31
DEMOGRAPHIC DATA	32
POST-SECONDARY PLANS DATA	33
SUMMATIVE DATA	34
STUDENT CERTIFICATE	35

## PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

#### PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNOR'S WEC IMPLEMENTATION GUIDE

The Governor's State Workforce Innovation Council (SWIC) views the development and adoption of a community and employer recognized Work Ethic Certificate (WEC) as an important tool that can help provide a pipeline of skilled high school graduates into today's workforce. The employability skills recognized in the Governor's WEC have been vetted by Hoosier employers, community based organizations and post-secondary education institutions and are designed to encourage students to meet the benchmarks that will assist them in their college or career goals.

Under the leadership of the SWIC, the Department of Workforce Development (DWD), in partnership with the Greater Clark County School Corporation (GCCS) and a special taskforce including members of the Indiana Department of Education (IDOE), Vocational Rehabilitation (VR), Indiana Chamber of Commerce and local employers developed the WEC Implementation Guide designed to provide instructions and sample documents for local school corporations to implement their own WEC program for high school students. The implementation guide also contains planning tools and data tracking worksheets that can be used to measure the program's effectiveness during the implementation phase.

All information contained in this guide are recommendations based upon the experiences of GCCS and is meant to serve as a starting point. The most effective WEC programs contain local guidance and feedback from the business community in order to ensure the students are prepared with the most in-demand industry employability skills. Sample documents contained in this guide can be modified to suit the needs of the individual school corporation and community.

#### **WORK ETHIC CERTIFICATION PROGRAM HISTORY**

In 2006, the Indiana DWD scaled the WEC model from East Allen County Schools statewide. Although this program contained the soft skills deemed necessary for employment, it lacked several components that would allow it to be a sustainable program in the participating school corporations. There was no employer driven recognition of the value of this program, and without local and state champions of this work, it was eventually discontinued.

In the 2013-14 school year, GCCS decided to take a comprehensive look at student soft skill proficiency. At that time, a few of the district's 20 schools had implemented Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports (PBIS) programs, and a decision was made to implement PBIS in all district schools. PBIS focuses on identifying student behavioral expectations that staff members will teach and positively reinforce school-wide.

Around that same time period, discussions began about implementing a WEC program. This concept was familiar to the district's Superintendent, Dr. Andrew Melin, as he had experience as a high school principal in the East Allen County Schools in 2006 during DWD's statewide implementation of the WEC. The need for a WEC was identified as a best practice by GCCS' College and Career Readiness Advisory Council, which is comprised of K-12, higher education, non-profit and for-profit employers, and elected officials as a necessary step to meet the talent pipeline needs of the regional economy.

While planning for WEC implementation, the GCCS administrative team identified the need to merge the district's PBIS and WEC efforts. Utilizing the district's administrative team and College and Career Readiness Advisory council, a single program combining PBIS and WEC was created and called PRIDE: Persistence, Respectfulness, Initiative, Dependability, and Efficiency.

The PRIDE program, implemented in GCCS during the 2014-15 school year, is designed to provide students from pre-school through 12th grade with a foundation of work ethic and character skills that will translate into a future workforce with the soft skills needed to help businesses and communities thrive. PRIDE, when taught and reinforced on a daily basis, can dramatically improve student behavior and create a positive school culture.

While PRIDE focuses on five character skills, the culminating event of the PRIDE program is the ability for graduating seniors to earn a Work Ethic Certification that documents a student's proficiency in those five character skills as well as in four quantifiable measures, i.e., attendance, behavior, community/school service, and grade point average. The WEC verifies high school graduates possess the soft skills necessary to succeed in any post-secondary endeavor and, when supported and implemented by businesses and organizations, greatly enhances a community's ability to meet workforce needs.

Through an ongoing partnership between GCCS and the Indiana DWD, the Governor's WEC, modeled after the successful PRIDE program, launched in the 2016-17 school year for a group of pilot school corporations.

#### **TIMELINE OF ACTIVITIES**

As mentioned in the historical information, GCCS Corporation served as the initial pilot implementation site of the Governor's WEC program. Below is a suggested timeline of activities that will help local school corporations convene a College and Career Advisory Council or similar body of committed employers, post-secondary institutions and community based organizations to assist in the planning and implementation process.

To best serve students with time to understand the WEC competencies in order consistently demonstrate them at school and in extracurricular activities, there are identified planning and implementation years. An effective and widely-regarded WEC program will not happen in one school year.

#### School Year 1:

- Establish a College and Career Readiness Advisory Council by the end of the first semester (more information on the Advisory Council on pages 10-14.
- Schedule meetings with the Advisory Council during the second semester to provide them more information the about the WEC Program and develop an action plan.
- Develop business partnerships to understand how they will honor the WEC.
- Meet with 10<sup>th</sup> and/or 11<sup>th</sup> grade students prior to the end of the year and inform them about the program.
- Send written overview of the program home to the parents.
- Provide staff professional development to inform them about the program and their roles in implementing the WEC Program.

#### School Year 2:

- Meet with 11th and/or 12th grade students within the first two weeks of school to:
  - Review program requirements;
  - Discuss with students the value of earning the WEC;
  - Distribute criteria checklists;
  - Establish deadline for students to enroll in the program.
- Schedule meetings with parents of 11<sup>th</sup> and/or 12<sup>th</sup> graders to:
  - Review program requirements and deadlines (provide copy of criteria);
  - Discuss the value of earning the WEC.
- Establish and communicate system to collect and monitor student data and progress.
- Order sashes, awards, etc. that will be used to acknowledge the WEC recipients at commencement.
- Establish and communicate deadlines for:
  - Community service hours to be completed and forms submitted;
  - o Cut-off date for monitoring attendance and discipline.
- Submit student names of those who could potentially receive the signed Governor's WEC to DWD (April/May).

Establish procedures for staff to sign the student's criteria letter:

• Do not allow students to present their forms to staff;

- o All staff in the building should be utilized;
- o Allow 2-3 days for this to occur;
- $\circ$  Use a location that can be secured and locked.
- Finalize list of WEC recipients and submit to the Department of Workforce Development

#### GOVERNOR'S WEC OVERVIEW

Students participating in the Governor's WEC program will be required to demonstrate the following employability skills consistently throughout the school year of participation.

The following 5 competencies will require the signature of three (3) teachers who have had the student candidate in class for the entire academic year.

- Student is able to persevere through challenges and problem-solve;
- Student is accepting and demonstrates service to others, possesses a positive attitude and communicates clearly;
- Student is a self-starter and a critical thinker;
- Student is reliable and demonstrates responsibility and teamwork;
- Student is organized, punctual and demonstrates self-management.

Student candidate will also be required to meet the following four (4) objective competencies for the entire academic year.

- Student demonstrates academic readiness and has a cumulative GPA of at least 2.0 and has met or is on track to meet all graduation requirements;
- Student attendance rate is 98% or higher;
- Student has 1 or fewer discipline referrals for the school year;
- Student has completed a minimum of 6 hours of community service or volunteerism during the academic calendar.

Student must meet a score of 9 of 9 in order to obtain the Governor's WEC.

#### GOVERNOR'S WEC APPLICATION PROCESS

Below is the approved process for participation in the Governor's WEC program through the SWIC Youth Committee.

- Local schools shall submit to the Department of Workforce Development, via email, a completed program application of any WEC program that they wish to be signed by the Governor of the State of Indiana and the Commissioner of Workforce Development.
- Local schools shall include letters of support from local employers.
- All applications that directly follow the prescribed Employability Skills Benchmarks, shall receive notification of approval from the Department of Workforce Development within 10 business days.
- Should the local WEC application and rubric deviate from the Employability Skills Benchmarks, the school shall submit justifications for these changes or additions. Justifications shall include employer support.
- Within 5 business days from receipt of all emailed applications, the Department of Workforce Development shall send, via email, any submitted application that deviates from the Employability Skills Benchmarks established in Appendix A to the SWIC Youth Committee.
- Within 10 business days from receipt of the email, SWIC Youth Committee members shall submit to the chair whether they approve or deny any deviations from the Employability Skills Benchmarks established in Appendix A, or if they have any additional questions for the school prior to making a decision.
- Once all questions have been addressed, the SWIC Youth Committee will vote at their next meeting on any pending WEC submissions.
- All approved submissions will be signed by the Governor of the State of Indiana and the Commissioner of Workforce Development.
- Beginning in school year 2017-2018, all schools who wish to have their certificates signed shall submit their program rubric to the Department of Workforce Development and SWIC Youth Committee no later than September 30 of the school year for which they wish to have their certificates signed. Schools only need to submit their program rubric to the SWIC if it is 1.) A new program, or 2.) The rubric has changed from the previous school year, however, program outcomes will be reviewed annually (see next bullet).
- By June 30 of each year, a school shall submit the outcomes of the program for the previous school year. DWD shall review each program's outcomes to determine if a school corporation is meeting the expectation of the department, the SWIC and the Governor's office.

#### OVERVIEW OF GCCS CORPORATION'S PRIDE PROGRAM

The mission of GCCS is to assure that every student graduates accepted to a post-secondary opportunity, i.e., four-year college, two-year college, military, workforce., etc. In order to meet that goal, students must not only have academic skills, but also the soft skills or process skills necessary to succeed in their chosen post-secondary setting.

To this end, Greater Clark staff members have worked to merge several systems into one system to instruct students on the expectations that exist in the school and career settings. These three systems, College Career Readiness (CCR), Positive Behavior Interventions and Support (PBIS), and Work Ethic Certification have merged to become the PRIDE Program.

At the start of the 2014-15 school year, PRIDE was introduced to all school staff, students, parents, and community supporters. PRIDE is essential for our students not only as a means to teach and reinforce behavioral expectations in our schools, but, more importantly, to assure our students graduate prepared to succeed in their chosen post-secondary opportunity.

The acronym PRIDE stands for:

Persistence – persevere through challenges, problem-solve

Respectfulness - accept and serve others, possess a positive attitude, communicate clearly

<u>I</u>nitiative – self-starters, critical thinkers

Dependability – academic readiness, reliable, demonstrate responsibility and teamwork

Efficiency – organized, punctual, self-management

The PRIDE Program allows schools to address common expectations and assess student performance as it relates to CCR, PBIS, and Work Ethic. Teaching these expectations and measuring student performance provides the data to determine each student's college and career readiness.

Schools incorporated PRIDE into their building-level plan during the 2014-15 school year to guide them in teaching PRIDE expectations and to acknowledge positive student behavior. Seniors who met specific PRIDE expectations were eligible to earn a Work Ethic Certification, supported by our Region 10 Works Council. Students wishing to obtain the Work Ethic Certification were measured in nine areas of academic and work ethic competency. Five subjective measures (PRIDE) required three teachers each to sign stating that a student had met these requirements. Four additional objective competencies, i.e., community/school service, attendance, academic readiness, and behavior were obtained from the district's student management system to indicate competency in measurable areas. At the end of the 2014-15 school year, WECs, signed by Governor Pence, were distributed to 170 Greater Clark graduates, which was 24% of the senior class.

In 2015-16, 208 Greater Clark graduates (30%) earned the WEC. The Work Ethic Certification program was also implemented with 5th and 8th graders with 31% of 5th graders and 24% of 8th graders earning the certification. In an effort to embed PRIDE into classrooms daily, a numerical PRIDE score, based upon a district created rubric, was given to all students on each nine week report card. Out of two points possible, K-12 students

averaged 1.5 for the school year. PRIDE has proven to be rigorous and respected by all stakeholders.

#### GCCS PRIDE RUBRIC OVERVIEW

In an effort to embed PRIDE into classrooms daily, a numerical PRIDE score that is based on a district created rubric (following page), is given to all WEC student participants on each nine week report card. Every teacher gives every student a score based on the following scale:

- 2 Exceeds Expectations
- 1 Meets Expectations
- 0 Below Expectations

The PRIDE rubric was created by a team of educators and reviewed by the district's College and Career Readiness Advisory Council.

Teachers are not obligated to track daily PRIDE grades, but must be able to provide justification to administrators and/or parents if necessary.

All teachers are expected to teach and positively reinforce PRIDE on a daily basis. Being responsible for giving a PRIDE score for each student on every report card enhances accountability to this expectation.

# 2015-2016 GCCS PRIDE RUBRIC

SCORE	Persistence	Respectfulness	Initiative	Dependability	Efficiency
2 - Exceeds Expectations A teacher would say: "Student is a positive role model in school."	Student consistently demonstrates persistence through challenges and problem solving.	Student consistently demonstrates both respectful and helpful behavior to fellow students and all school staff.  Student seeks and accepts the opinions and input of others.	Student initiates curiosity and an interest in learning.  Student independently engages in learning activities.  Student consistently perseveres; problem solves, and actively seeks assistance when needed.	Student consistently demonstrates academic readiness and reliability.  Student acts as a leader or exemplary team member.  Student consistently values and encourages all member of teams.	Student is consistently punctual and prepared.  Student almost always completes homework and classroom assignments in a timely fashion.  Student almost always demonstrates strong personal, time management, and flexibility skills.
1 - Meets Expectations A teacher would say: "Student demonstr ates this in observabl e ways."	Student demonstrates persistence through challenges and problem solving.	Student demonstrates both respectful and helpful behavior to fellow students and all school staff.  Student listens and accepts the opinions and input of others.	Student demonstrates curiosity and an interest in learning. Student engages in learning activities. Student demonstrates perseverance, seeks assistance when needed.	Student often demonstrates academic readiness and reliability. Student is a strong team member. Student usually values and encourages all member of teams.	Student is often punctual and prepared.  Student often completes homework and classroom assignments in a timely fashion.  Student often demonstrates strong personal, time management, and flexibility skills.
O - Below Expectations A teacher would say: "Student could use support here."	Student needs improvement in demonstrating persistence through challenges and problem solving.	Student seldom demonstrates both respectful and helpful behavior to fellow students and all school staff.  Student usually ignores the opinions and input of others.	Student seldom demonstrates curiosity and an interest in learning. Student rarely engages in learning activities. Student lacks initiative in seeking academic assistance.	Student rarely demonstrates academic readiness and reliability.  Student rarely participates in team activities.  Student rarely values and encourages all member of teams.	Student is rarely punctual and prepared.  Student rarely completes homework or assignments in a timely manner.  Student does not demonstrate efficiency skills

#### COLLEGE AND CAREER READINESS ADVISORY COUNCIL

The most effective change in the implementation of the WEC from 2006 to present, is Greater Clark County's use of a College and Career Readiness Advisory Council. Purpose:

- To help improve student achievement by increasing relevancy of content;
- To develop a stronger talent pool;
- To promote economic development in the region.

#### Suggested Membership:

- Education, business, and government leaders.
- The following are specific examples from the GCCS advisory council:
  - Hospital CEO
  - o President & CEO of One Southern Indiana
  - Director of Business Retention One Southern Indiana
  - o Executive Director Region 10 Workforce Board
  - o Govt. & Community Relations Mgr. for Duke Energy
  - o Regional President of Credit Union
  - Commercial Real Estate Broker
  - Owner of Lumber Company
  - Architect
  - President & CEO of Construction Company
  - Mechanical Engineer from HVAC Co.
  - o Executive Director of Local Independent Electrical Contractors
  - President of IT Company
  - o President of Junior Achievement Kentuckiana Inc.
  - o President & CEO of Family Scholar House
  - o Big Brothers Big Sisters of Kentuckiana
  - o Metro United Way-Southern Indiana Director
  - Chancellor of Local Ivy Tech Campus
  - o Director from Purdue Polytech
  - o Admissions Director from Indiana University Southeast
  - Career Development Center-Asst. Director-IUS
  - o President or CEO of Manufacturing Companies (3)
  - o Ford Motor CO. HR Rep/Ford NGL Partnership Mgr.
  - Director of the Ports of Indiana
  - o Amazon Fulfillment Services Plant Manager
  - Human Resources Directors
  - Mayor
  - o State Senator
  - o Regional Director from U.S. Senator's Office
  - Attorney
  - o Regional Director Career & Technical Education
  - School District Representatives (e.g. Superintendent & Assistant

Superintendent, College & Career Readiness Coordinator, Department Supervisors/Directors, Principals, Counselors, Teachers)

#### Action Plan:

The next step is the development of a CCR Action Plan which should include the following:

- Goals
- Action Steps
- Timeline for Implementation
- Current Data
- Target Data
- Data Source
- Position/Person Responsible
- Actual Results

The advisory plan goals could include:

- Implement the Work Ethic Certification program.
- Establish partnerships with Business/Industry, Governmental Agencies and Post-Secondary Institutions to create community support for the WEC.
- Develop a campaign to make parents, students and the community aware of the WEC Program.

# SAMPLE COLLEGE AND CAREER READINESS ADVISORY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN

## Sample Action Plan

Strategic Objective	Α	Action Items	Current Data	Target Data	Timeli ne	Responsi ble Party	Actual Results
Nurture an outstanding work ethic in Economic Growth Region 10 students as	1.	Increase awareness of the value of a work ethic certification to students, parents, educators, and business/organiz ational leaders.			14/15 School Year	Greater Clark CCR Team	Presentations made to GCCS seniors and their parents, community groups, and regional and state level groups.
needed to succeed in any workplace or career endeavor		Develop a set of criteria for the Work Ethic Certification that be supported by the educational and business community.			14/15 School Year	Greater Clark CCR Team	Nine criteria established by GCCS staff and CCR advisory
	3.	Implement the Pilot of Work Ethic Certification program with Greater Clark Schools high school and Prosser seniors.			14/15 School Year	Greater Clark CCR Team	170 GCCS seniors and 34 Prosser seniors earned certification
	4.	Expand the Work Ethic Certification pilot program to include both the 5 <sup>th</sup> grade and 8 <sup>th</sup> grade levels and implement PRIDE curriculum to teach character skills to pre-school through 12 <sup>th</sup> grade students.  Student progress toward earning the WEC will be monitored quarterly.	Meetings have been held with all 12 <sup>th</sup> grade students and for parents at all high schools. Letters sent home to all parents. Students signed up: 12 <sup>th</sup> Grade = 568 Students (73% of Class)	At least 25% of all 12th graders will earn the WEC: 12 <sup>th</sup> Grade = 194 Students	15/16 School Year	Greater Clark CCR Team	Calendar attached.

Strategic Objective	Action Items	Current Data	Target Data	Timeline	Respon sible Party	Actual Results
	5. Recruit employers who will recognize and champion a WEC.  Prepare an informational packet that can be shared with business partners.  Develop a list of things that businesses could do to honor and recognize the WEC.  Individual meetings with current and future business partners to finalize how each will recognize the WEC.	During 2014/15 partnership meetings 90 organizations stated they would support the WEC.  Following items are complete: -Informational letter -Student checklist with the 9 required criteriaForm businesses will use to confirm how they will honor the WECSample certificate.  Draft list has been developed.  Spreadsheet has been created and will be used to document meetings, business information and how each will honor the certificate.	At least 100 employers will commit to the WEC.	15/16 School Year	Greater Clark CCR Team	
	6. Encourage and Support the implementation of the Work Ethic Certification in all region 10 school corporations.  Mr. John Dattilo and CCR Counselor will contact each corporation to request a meeting.	Meetings to date: South Harrison 8/20/2015. Scottsburg High 8/25/2015.	At least two school districts and/or high schools will commit to implemen ting the WEC	15/16 School Year	Greater Clark CCR, Prosser Admin, John Dattilo	South Harrison plans to implement the WEC 2016/17. Scottsburg High implementing WEC 2015/16 (Attachment)

#### SAMPLE GCCS ADVISORY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA



# College and Career Readiness Advisory January 29, 2015

- I. Welcome
- II. School-Based Advisory Update Michael Denny
- III. Career Center Update Jeanne Null
- IV. Work Ethic Certification Jan Myers and Christi Steller
- V. Discussion Dr. Melin
- VI. Adjourn
- VII. Next Meeting: Wednesday, April 22 from 11:30 a.m. 1:00 p.m. (GCCS Administration Building)

#### **BUSINESS PARTNERSHIPS**

Business partners who will recognize and honor the WEC are crucial to the success of the program. Following are some strategies and activities used by GCCS when engaging their local business community.

- Business leaders were included as members of the College and Career Advisory when
  it was established. This allowed them to be engaged in the process from day one and
  play an integral role in developing the criteria for the program and in identifying ways
  businesses could potentially recognize and honor the WEC. The business partnership
  letter is reflective of the work done by the advisory.
- It is important to have representatives from across the business community to ensure that all sectors have a voice in the process. The GCCS advisory has representatives from manufacturing, logistics, building and construction, the health industry, the financial sector, public service, non-profit organizations, the chamber of commerce or a comparable organization, post-secondary education and K-12 education. The advisory also reflects diversity in the kinds of roles the advisory members have within their respective organizations. Included are business owners, CEO's, plant managers, human resource specialists, state representative and senator, liaison from U.S. Senators office, financial managers and directors of non-profits. This also includes a post-secondary education chancellor, a campus director, an admissions director and others from leadership positions. From K-12 education, members include teachers, counselors and representatives from the administration. Experience has shown that you can start with a small but representative advisory and as the program develops others will want to join and become a part of what you are doing.

Following are some of the ways GCCS informed and engaged their business community:

- Current advisory members shared information about the program with their colleagues and counter-parts;
- Informational materials and a brochure were created and these were used to create talking points. This provides consistency to the message being shared with potential business partners.
- Staff attended chamber of commerce events, job fairs, business expositions, community days and any other events where we could tell others about the program and provide them with information;
- Conducted door-to-door visits or cold calls to make businesses aware of the program.

The sequence of activities varied based on circumstances but GCCS used the following process for development of their partnerships:

- Visit the business (cold call) and ask that informational materials and contact information be shared with a company representative;
- Place a follow-up call within two to three days to schedule a meeting with a company representative;

•	Use the meeting to provide a program overview, share program materials and answer questions;

- Second follow-up call was made at which time the partnership was finalized;
- If already engaged with a company via the advisory council or other college and career readiness activities then utilize the partnership letter to connect via email and follow that up with a phone call.

The resources available within each school corporation will vary which means the process will look different but can still result in an effective implementation of the program.

#### SAMPLE BUSINESS PARTNERSHIP LETTER

[Insert Mailing Information] [Insert Date]

Dear [Insert Name],

One component of the [School Corporation] College and Career Readiness Program is to identify business and industry partners who will honor the WEC earned by graduates. Students receiving the WEC will have been measured in nine areas of academic and employability skills competency. This certificate includes five subjective measures (persistence, respectfulness, initiative, dependability, efficiency) which will require three teachers each to sign stating that a student has met these requirements. Students must also complete 6 hours of community service, have a GPA of 2.0 or higher and meet all graduation requirements, have an attendance rate of 98% and one or fewer discipline referrals for the year.

Based on discussions with the district's College and Career Advisory and many of you in the business community we believe that the requirements for a student to earn the WEC are rigorous and that students earning the certificate have demonstrated the academic and work based skills needed to become successful employees. We are happy to report that [Insert Data # or %] of our graduating class met all of the criteria and received their WEC.

Our next step is to determine how our business community will commit their support of this program and to the students earning the certificate. Listed below are suggestions from discussions with business leaders, our administrative team and the college and career readiness advisory council as possible ways a business could honor the certificate. This list is certainly not inclusive and we would appreciate your feedback on any additional way that your organization might honor the WEC.

Please provide the following information if your organization will partner with (corporation) Schools in recognizing and honoring those students who have earned the WEC.

Name:	Business:
Phone:	Email:
Certificate Holder will be provided:	
1) Job Interview – Guaranteed2) Applicant Pool Preference3) Increased Base Pay5%10% 4) College Orientation Class Waived	<ul> <li>7) Bonus Vacation Day @ End of First Yr.</li> <li>8) Sign-On Bonus</li> <li>9) Tuition Re-Imbursement</li> <li>10) Health Club/Gym Membership</li> </ul>
5) Professional Mentoring Opportunity 6) Professional Seminars/Development	11) Flexible Scheduling

We want to thank you again for your support as we prepare students for a successful post-secondary experience. If you have any questions or need additional information please contact [Insert contact name, title, phone number and email].

#### **BUSINESS PARTNERS - INCENTIVES**

There are a number of ways for businesses to partner with your school corporation and that information is included in the Business Partnership Letter. Following are some suggested ways to share information with your community about those businesses who are recognizing and honoring the WEC.

- Business partners can be listed and recognized on the school and corporation websites.
- Business partners can be identified and recognized at different meetings and forums.
- Digital displays can be placed in your schools (high traffic locations) with a continuous scroll identifying your business partners and the ways they recognize the WEC.
- Business partner information can be shared at faculty meetings.
- Business partners can be recognized at student meetings.
- A list of the business partners can be posted in the schools, athletic facilities, etc.
- Business partner information can be included in both school and corporation newsletters.

Below is a sample tracking form that can be used to track commitments from business partners.

Business	Job Interview Guaranteed	Applicant Pool Preference	Increased Base Pay	Professional Mentoring Opportunity	Seminars	*Bonus Vacation Day	*Tuition Reimbursement	Flex Schedule
Company #1	X							
Company #2			X					
Company #3	X	Х						
Company #4		Х						Х
Company #5	Х			X				
Company #6	Х							
Company #7	Х	Х	10%			Х	х	X
Company #8	X	X						
Company #9	Х	Х					х	
Company #10	Х						х	

#### PARENT/GUARDIAN LETTER

The following letter is sent to parents during the second semester of the year their child/children are completing their junior year.

- School should meet with all juniors to explain/review the Work Ethic Certification program.
- The parent/guardian letter can be provided to students at the meeting and request that they take it home to their parent/guardian.
- Schools should also consider mailing the letter home following the student meeting.
- Schools could host a parent meeting following their receipt of the informational letter.

As these students begin their senior year, schools should schedule the following activities within the first two weeks of school:

- Meeting with the senior class. At this meeting either the superintendent, principal or
  a designee will review the program with the students and discuss with them the
  benefits of earning the WEC.
- The parent/guardian letter should be distributed to students with a request that they take it home to their parent/guardian.
- Host a second parent meeting. Another opportunity to inform parents about the program and encourage them to have their child/children participate in the program.

Following are other ways to provide information to students/parents regarding the Work Ethic Certification program:

- Include article in school newspaper;
- Information can be included in school/corporation newsletters;
- Program information can be posted to school/corporation webpages;
- Request local media organizations to help inform the public about the program.

Please note that this letter can be used as either an informational letter or as the meeting invitation letter to parents. Simply replace the last paragraph with the paragraph highlighted in red text.

#### SAMPLE PARENT INFORMATION LETTER

[Insert Mailing Information] [Insert Date]

Dear Parent/Guardian,

One aspect of our College and Career Readiness Initiative is the Governor's Work Ethic Certification program. There are a limited number of school corporations in Indiana who are currently providing this opportunity to students. Earning this certificate is a way for students to demonstrate that they possess the employability and character skills needed to be successful as they enter post-secondary institutions, apprenticeships, the military or the workforce.

Students receiving the Governor's WEC are measured in nine areas of academic and work ethic competency. Five subjective measures (persistence, respectfulness, teamwork, initiative and efficiency) will require three teachers each to sign stating that a student has met these requirements. Students must also complete 6 hours of community service, have a GPA of 2.0 or higher and meet all graduation requirements, have an attendance rate of 98% and one or fewer discipline referrals for the year.

Our next step is to continue working with our business community and post-secondary institutions to determine how they will commit their support of this program and to the students earning the certificate. Based on feedback we have received from the business community it is obvious that they place great value on employees being at work on a regular basis and on time, being able to work with others, being able to solve problems and being a self-starter. The goal this year is to partner with businesses in the local area that will honor the Governor's WEC.

We would like for you to encourage your child/children to participate in the program. Students can sign up for the program in the [designated location] at their school. If you have any questions or would like more information about the program please contact [Name] at [Phone Number] or [Email].

We want to invite you to attend a parent meeting on [Day, Month/Date, Year, Time and Location]. The meeting will be an opportunity for you to learn more about the Governor's WEC program and for us to answer your questions. In the event you are unable to attend the meeting please contact [Name] at [Phone Number] or [Email] for more information about the program.

Cir	2001	ely,	
211	ICCI	CIY,	

Name Title

### STUDENT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM/CHECK SHEET

The Governor's WEC Acknowledgement Form/Checklist is used for the following:

- Students sign the form at the beginning of the school year to acknowledge that they are making a commitment to earn the WEC.
- The form is used at the end of the year to verify which students have met all the criteria for earning the WEC.

Students will have been informed about the WEC in the years leading up to their senior year. At the beginning of the senior year, a meeting will be held to share with the students the value of earning the WEC and a review of the criteria that must be met. Following the senior meeting, students will be provided the opportunity to sign their form indicating that they are committing to earn the WEC.

- Students put their name and the school they attend on the form and then sign/date indicating they have read and understand the guidelines for successfully completing the established criteria.
- The forms are collected and maintained by the designated school staff.

At the end of the school year the forms for all students eligible to receive the WEC will be placed in a secure room for a designated period of time during which staff will sign student forms.

- The forms should be placed in a secure room to provide staff the anonymity to sign based on their honest assessment of the student.
- All staff at the school are eligible to sign forms for students (including, but not limited to teachers, administrators, counselors, coaches, office staff, custodial staff, cafeteria staff, para-educators, etc.)
- Staff can sign for students in the areas of persistence, respectfulness, teamwork, initiative and efficiency. Each student must have three staff members sign in each of the five areas (a total of 15 signatures). Staff may sign for one area or could sign all five areas for a student; this is at the discretion of the staff member.

The student check sheets are then completed by designated staff using the data that has been recorded on the Criteria Monitoring Spreadsheet. These areas include the following:

- Community Service: students must have completed at least six (6) hours of community service and submitted the documentation forms.
- In the area of dependability staff will record the following:
  - Student must have a 2.0 GPA (cumulative, grades 9-12) and meet all graduation requirements;
  - Students must be have a 98% attendance rate and have four (4) or fewer signins, sign-outs or times tardy to school; and
  - Students must have no more than one (1) discipline referral. For serious infractions such as assault, drugs/alcohol or weapons the student would immediately lose their eligibility for the WEC.

## SAMPLE STUDENT PARTICIPATION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

Studer	nt Name:	School:
compe met th	etency. Five subjective measures will require th	e measured in nine areas of academic and work ethic tree teachers each to sign stating that a student has competencies will be obtained from the student surable areas.
1.	Persistence: Student is able to persevere through	gh challenges and problem-solve.
2.	<b>Respectfulness:</b> Student accepts and demonstrand communicates clearly.	ates service to others, possesses a positive attitude
	<ul><li>Teamwork</li><li>Community Service: Student has complete</li></ul>	d a minimum of six hours of service this school year.
3.	Initiative: Student is a self-starter and a critical	thinker.
4.	<b>Dependability:</b> Student is reliable and demonst demonstrates academic readiness.	rates responsibility and teamwork. Student also
	<ul> <li>Academic Readiness: Student has a GPA of graduation.</li> <li>Reliability Attendance Rate: Student atten sign-ins, sign-outs or times tardy to school.</li> <li>Responsibility: Student has one or fewer displayed.</li> </ul>	dance rate is 98% or higher AND has four or fewer
5.	Efficiency: Student is organized, punctual and d	lemonstrates self-management.
Instruc	ctions: Please read the following statement, co	mplete this form and return it to your counselor.
fully u		and requirements for the Governor's WEC program. I Completion of all established criteria necessary for e the WEC.
, ,	ning, I verify that I am a senior in high school an Certification Program.	nd I am eligible to apply for participation in the Work
Studer	nt Signature:	Date:
Admin	nistrator Signature:	Date:

# SAMPLE WORK ETHIC TEACHER/ADULT VERIFICATION FORM

Student Name:	School:	
By signing, I verify that the above below competencies to complete		ol and successfully demonstrated the nts.
Persistence: Student is able to pe	ersevere through challenges and	problem-solve.
1.	2	3
Respectfulness: Student accepts	and demonstrates service to otl	ners, possesses a positive attitude and
communicates clearly.		_
1.	2	3
Teamwork		
1.	2	3
☐ Community Service  Initiative: Student is a self-starte	minimum of six hours of	<b>Completed:</b> Student has completed a service this school year. required tasks with minimal assistance.
1.	2	3
<b>Dependability:</b> Student is reliable readiness.	e and demonstrates responsibili	ty, teamwork and community/job
☐ Career Readiness: Stu Disabilities)	dent participates and progresse	s in job training (for Students with
☐ In-School Job	☐ Job Shadow	☐Work Study
☐ Reliability Attendanc		tardy to school: Student attendance D has four or fewer sign-ins, sign-outs
☐ Responsibility		rals: Student has one or fewer discipline
Efficiency - Student is organized,	punctual and demonstrates self	-management.
1.	2	3

# 

A student **must** earn 9/9 Work Ethic Points to obtain the Governor's WEC.

#### **COMMUNITY SERVICE DOCUMENTATION**

Students have many opportunities to complete their community service requirement. The hours may be completed in the community at large or at school. Any activity where the student volunteers their time is acceptable provided they receive no monetary compensation or a grade/credit if the activity occurs at school.

Following are some examples of activities that would qualify as community service:

- Helping at an animal shelter;
- Service activities with organizations like Boy Scouts, Girl Scouts, etc.;
- Volunteering at a nursing home;
- Volunteering with a church group;
- Working with a group to help clean up a local park, etc.;
- Helping a neighbor by mowing their yard or other tasks (no pay);
- Service activities with schools clubs/organizations such as Key Club, Jobs for America's Graduates, National Honor Society, etc.;
- Volunteer work in classrooms, athletic event, school plays, etc.

This is certainly not an inclusive list and there are many other activities that students could do to complete their community service requirement.

The documentation form can be modified or edited as needed. This allows for schools/corporations to adapt the form to include specific information they want to include. It is also at the discretion of the school/corporation to decide if students need to turn in a form for each activity or use only one form if all the volunteer hours are completed at the same organization.

## **SAMPLE COMMUNITY SERVICE DOCUMENTATION FORMS**

# **Community Service Documentation**

	2, 1 caude	
Briefly describe the community service		
Organization:		
Student Name:	School:	
shelly describe the community service	activity completed by the student.	
Briefly describe the community service		
Organization:		
Student Name:	School:	

#### CRITERIA MONITORING SPREADSHEET

The collection and monitoring of data is an integral part of the Work Ethic Certification program. It would be at the discretion of each school/corporation to determine a methodology that works best for them. That said, after trying several different methods we have found the Criteria Monitoring Spreadsheet to be both efficient and effective.

Following are some basics for using the spreadsheet:

- Column A: Student names can be imported from your student database or entered manually.
- Column B: Participation is optional for seniors and can be marked accordingly.
- Column C: Record the student enrollment date. If students are enrolled less than a semester we do not allow them to participate. Students who are enrolled for the entire second semester have their data adjusted accordingly (2 days absence, etc.).
- Columns D-J: Record specific data categories related to competencies. GCCS found it helpful to record the number of instances for absences, tardies, etc. Example Student H has at least 1 discipline referral, 8 absences, and 17 sign-ins.
- Column K: Record community service information. Highlight or color code students who meet the standard.
- Column L: Indicates those students who earn the WEC.

Once the data collection has been finalized:

- Students receiving the WEC are identified.
- The data is shared with building administrators, counselors and administrative office staff.
- Students not receiving the WEC are made aware of the criteria they did not meet. This can be done on an ongoing basis throughout the school year.
- The data is shared with parents only when they inquire as to why their child/children did not receive the WEC.
- If a school corporation has more than one school participating this data is used to compile corporation results and reports.

# SAMPLE CRITERIA MONITORING SPREADSHEET

Column A	Column B	Column C	Column D	Column E	Column F	Column G	Column H	Column I	Column J	Column K	Column L
Student	WEC	Date of	Less than	Less than Req.	More than	Total Absences	Total Tardies (no	Total Sign- ins (no	Total Sign- outs (no	Community Service	Earned
Name	Candidate	Application	2.0 GPA	_	Disciplinary	-	more than	more than	more than	Hours (min.	WEC
				(15)	Referral	than 4)	4)	4)	4)	6 Req.)	
Student A	X	7/30/2015				6					
Student B	X	8/5/2015								6	Х
Student C	X	7/30/2015					10		8	6	
Student D	X	7/30/2015	Х			5					
Student E	X	7/30/2015								6	Х
Student F	X	7/30/2015			X	9			10		
Student G	X	7/30/2015								6	Х
Student H	X	7/30/2015			Х	8		17			
Student I	X	7/30/2015				5	7		19	6	
Student J	X	7/30/2015								6	Х
Student K	X	7/30/2015		Х						6	
Student L	X	7/30/2015				26	15				
Student M	X	7/30/2015								6	Х
Student N	X	7/30/2015						12		8	
Student O	X	7/30/2015	Х			14					
Student P	X	7/30/2015				12	6				
Student Q	X	7/30/2015		Х							

#### **DATA COLLECTION AND ANALYSIS**

During the implementation year of the Governor's WEC program each school/corporation needs to designate someone who will be responsible for collecting, recording and analyzing the data.

The first year data is used to establish the baseline. Each successive year creates longitudinal data from which growth targets and goals can be established. Data also validates area where the program is experiencing success.

Each school corporation would need to decide how the data would be shared and with whom it would be shared. At present we share the data with our board of trustees, the administrative team (central office and school), our college and career advisory and the counselors. We will be sharing the data with students and parents but are still working on the logistics of how best to accomplish this.

#### **DEMOGRAPHIC DATA**

The demographic data currently compares the data on a year to year basis only for the identified groups. In moving forward schools/corporations will want to compare/contrast their results to the total school/corporation population for each identified group.

Following are some activities that can be used to better engage students from identified groups where participation or success in the Work Ethic Certification Program has been lacking.

- The superintendent should speak to all senior classes to address the importance of the program and their support of the program.
- Counselors should make the WEC a focus of their meetings with students during the years leading up to them becoming seniors. The program needs to be strongly emphasized during final planning for the senior year.
- Teachers should promote the program and encourage students to participate.
- Schools/corporations can use newsletters, websites and other media to promote the program and the benefits it brings to the student.
- Business partners can meet with specific groups of students to promote participation in the program.

	School 1	School 1	School 2	School 2	School 3	School 3	School 4	School 4	Overall Corporation	Overall Corporation	Overall Corporation	% CHANGE
School Year	2014-15	2015-16	2014-15	2015-16	2014-15	2015-16	2014-15	2015-16	2014-15	2015-16		
MALE	0	1	20	25	57	70	11	10	88	106	18	20%
FEMALE	0	0	24	23	50	68	8	8	82	99	17	21%
WHITE	0	1	39	44	84	89	19	18	142	152	10	7.0%
BLACK	0	0	0	0	14	22	0	0	14	22	8	57.1%
MULTI-RACIAL	0	0	0	2	5	11	0	0	5	13	8	160.0%
HISPANIC/LATINO	0	0	5	2	2	13	0	0	7	15	8	114.3%
HAWAIIAN/PACIFI												
C ISLANDER	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	1	0.0%
AMERICAN												
INDIAN/ALASKAN	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	1	0.0%
ASIAN	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	1	1	0	0%
SPECIAL												
EDUCATION	0	1	2	4	12	10	2	2	16	17	1	6.3%
FREE LUNCH	0	1	11	5	19	43	3	2	33	51	18	54.5%
REDUCED LUNCH	0	0	2	3	9	13	2	1	13	17	4	30.8%
PAID LUNCH	0	0	31	40	79	82	14	15	124	137	13	10.5%

#### **POST-SECONDARY PLANS DATA**

The post-secondary data provides an overview of what students are planning to do following graduation.

All seniors are required to provide written verification of their post-secondary plans:

- College bound must provide letter of acceptance.
- If entering the military the students must have letter of having been accepted for service.
- If they are going to work they need a letter from their current or prospective employer.

The data can then be used to look for trends and patterns of what students are doing when they graduate. Example: When GCCS looked at first set of data, they found that 91% of the students earning the WEC indicated they were going to either a 2-year or 4-year college while only 7% were planning to enter the workforce. This information is then used to establish growth targets to students without a post-secondary plan or to better engage Career and Technical Education students who may be interested in pursuing apprenticeship programs or matriculate directly into the workforce.

This information can be shared in the same manner as referenced above for the demographic data.

An example of a Post-Secondary Tracking Sheet is below.

	4 Year College			2 Year College		Employment		Military		Apprenticeship			Total					
School	of	Class of 2016	Diff	of	Class of 2016	Diff	of	Class of 2016	Diff	of	Class of 2016	Diff	of	Class of 2016	Diff	of	Class of 2016	Diff
School 1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1
School 2	25	36	11	17	5	-12	0	1	1	1	5	4	0	1	1	43	48	5
School 3	86	111	25	19	13	-6	12	7	-5	1	7	6	0	0	0	118	138	20
School 4	14	13	-1	2	3	1	1	1	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	17	18	1
Total	125	160	35	38	21	-17	13	10	-3	2	13	11	0	1	1	178	205	27

# **SUMMATIVE DATA**

Summative data is used to establish targets for the upcoming year and we share this data in the same manner as referenced above for the demographic data.

School	Number of Participants			# Not Met Criteria		
School 1	166	48	29%	118		
School 2	21	0	0%	21		
School 3	9	1	11%	8		
School 4	437	138	32%	299		
School 5	54	18	43%	36		
Totals	687	205	30%	482		

## **STUDENT CERTIFICATE**

# Placeholder for DWD Designed Governor's WEC



